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IN THE ^UPREME COURT OF OHIO

OHIO EDISON COMPANY, THE
CLEVELAND ELECTRIC
ILLUMINATING COMPANY & THE
TOLEDO EDISON COMPANY

Appel l ants,

CASE NO. 2013-2026

Appeal from thePubiie Utilities
Commission of Ohio

V.

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF OHIO

Appellee.

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
Case No. 11-5201-EL-RDR

MO`I'ION TO SEAL OF APPELLANTS, OHIO EDISON COMPANY, THE
CLEVELAND ELECTRIC ILLUMINATING COMPANY AND THE TOLEDO EDISON

COMPANY

Pursuant to Rule 3.02(B) of the Rules of Practice of the Supreme Coua-t of Ohio and this

Court's precedent, Ohio Edison Company, The Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company and

The Toledo Edison Company (collectively, "the Companies'°) respectfully request this Court to

seal the certain portions of the Appendix and the Supplement that have been filed with the

Companies' Merit Brief. Specifically, the Companies request that the following documents

contained in the Appendix and the Supplement be allowed to be submitted under seal:

Appendix:

In the Alatter o_f the Review of the Alterncrtive Energy Rider Contained in the
Tariffs of Ohio Edison Company, The Clei^elancl Electric Illuminating Company,
and ^'he Toledo Edison Conapany, Case No. 11-5201-EL-RDR, Application for
Rehearing of Ohio Edison Compariy, The Cleveland Electric Illuminating
Company and The Toledo Edison Company (Brief Only) (Sept. 6, 2013).

Supple.ment:

• In the Matter of the Review of the Alternative Energy Rider Contained
in the 1 ariffs of Ohio Edison Company, The Cleveland Electric Illuminating
Conzpany,and The Toledo Edison Conzpany; PUCO No, 11-5201-EL-RDR,



Direct Testimony of Daniel R. Bradley on Behalf of Ohio Edison Company, The
Cleveland Electric Tlluminating Company, and The Toledo Edison Company (Jan.
23, 2013), pages 29, 41, 42, 44.

• In the Matter of the Review of the Alternative Energy Rider Contained in the
Tariffs ofOhio Edison Company, The Cleveland Electric Illztminating Company,
and The Toledo Edison Cornpany, PUCO No. 11-5201-EL-RDR; Direct
Testimony of Dean W. Stahis on Behalf of Ohio Edison Company, The Cleveland
Electric Illuminating Company, and. The Toledo Edison Company (Jan. 23, 2013),
pages 31, 35.

• In the 1Llatter of the Revietiv of the Alternative Energy Rider Contained in the
Tariffs of Ohio Edison Company, The Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company,
and The Toledo Edison Conapany, PUCO No. 11-5201-EL-RDR, I-Iearing Tr.
Vol. I(Feb. 19, 2013), page 207, 208; Hearing Tr. Vol. Il, (Feb. 20, 2013), pages
360, 369-370, 372-374.

• In the Matter of the Review of the Alternative Energy Rider Contained in the
Tariffs of Ohio Edison Company, The Cleveland Electric Illumi.nating C'ompany;
and The Toledo Edison Con:cpany, PUCO No. 11 -5201 -EL-RDR, OCC Ex. 9
(Reports by Navigant Consulting, Inc.).

In the Matter of the Review of the Alternative Energy Rider Contained in the
T ar ij.fs ofOhio Edison Company, The Cleveland F;lecti•ic Illuminati.ng Company,
and The Toledo E, dison Company, PUCO No. 11 -5201 -EL-RDR, Rebuttal
'I'estimony of Eileen M. Mikkelsen on Behalf of Ohio Edison Company, The
Cleveland Electric Tllurninating Company, andThe Toledo Edison Company
(Feb. 22, 2013), page 3.

As demonstrated in the attached Memorandum in Support, in the proceeding below the

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (the "Commission") determined, on numerous occasions,

that the material at issue contained trade secrets under Ohio law. Further, this information is also

contained in the confidential portions of the record transferred under seal to the office of this

Court's clerk on January 23, 2014. As explained more fitlly in the attached Nlemorandum in

Support, the Companies respectfiilly request that this Court grant this motion to seal the relevant

portions of the Appendix and the Supplement to the Companies' Merit Brief,
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF OHIO

OHIO EDISON COMFANY, THE
CLEVELAND ELECTRIC
ILLUMPNATING COMPANY & TIJE
TOLEDO EDISON COMPANY

Appellants,

CASE NO. 2013-2026

Appeal from the Public Utilities
Commission of Ohio

V.

THE PUBLIC tTTILI7'IES COMMISSION
OF OHIO

Appellee.

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
Case No. 11-5201-EL-RDR

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO SEAL

1. INTRODUCTION

Certain portions of the Appendix and Supplement, filed with the Companies' Merit Brief,

warrant being filed under seal because they contain confidential, proprietary information related

to the Companies' procurement of renewable energy credits ("RECs"). In the proceeding below,

the Comanission repeatedly determined that this information constituted trade secrets under Ohio

statutory law and this Court's precedent. This information is also contained in the record from

the proceeding below, portions of which were filed under seal with the office of this Court's

clerk on January 23, 2014. Filing these documents under seal is the only way to protect the

confidential, proprietary information at issue. As demonstrated below, this Court should thus

grant the Motion to Seal of the Companies.

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

Pursuant to Sections 4928.64 and 4928.65 of the Ohio Revised Code, electric distribution

utilities in Ohio, such as the Companies, are required to "generate a portion" of their "electricity



supply to retail customers" from alternative energy resources. See R.C. §§ 4928.64(B), 4928.65.

Electric utilities may purchase such resources from suppliers througb a REC procurement

process. Id. On February 19, 2009, as part of their application in Case No. 08-935-EL-SSO, the

Companies submitted a plan to procure the necessary RECs for the period .Ianuaiy 1, 2009

through May 31, 2011. The procurement would be made through a reguest for proposal ("RFP")

process. See PUCO Case No. 08-935-EL-SSO, Second Opinion and Order, p. 9 (Mar. 25, 2009).

The Commission approved this plan in its Second Opinion and Order in that case. IrI A key

feature of the RFP process was the confidentiality of certain information. Bidders would not

know the identity or ntimber of other bidders or the price bid by any bidder. This promoted the

competitiveness of the RFP and this required bidders to offer the best prices, reflective of the

rnarket.

The Commission further approved the Companies' recovery of the costs associated with

the REC RFP procurement process by allowing for the establishment of an alternative energy

cost-recovery rider, Rider AER. Id. The Companies then proceeded to issue RFPs, entertain and

accept bids, and enter into binding, confidential contracts for the purchase of RECs with various

suppliers to comply with the provisions of Section 4928.64.

On September 20, 2011, the Commission initiated the audit proceeding below, PUCO

Case No. 11-5201-EL-RI)R, by opening a docket to review Rider A.ER. "I'o assist with the audit,

the Commission requested that the Commission Staff ("Staff ") secure the services of outside

auditors. See PUCO Case No. 11 -5201 -EL-RDR, Entry, p, 1(Feb. 23, 2011). Staff selected

Exeter Associates, Inc. ("f-Exeter") and Goldenberg Schneider, LPA ("Goldenberg") as outside

auditors. Id. Exeter was selected to perform a management/performance audit and Goldenberg

to perform a financial audit.

2



To assist Exeter and Goldenberg, the Companies provided both of these auditors and

Staff with competitively sensitive third-party proprietary information, including: (a) the identities

of specific REC suppliers who participated in the RFPs; and (b) the specific prices for the IZL;Cs

bid by specific suppliers in response to each RFP (the "REC Procurement Data"). Case No. 11-

5201-EL-RDR, Opinion and Order at 9 (Aug. 7, 2013). The Companies provided the REC

Procurement Data with the und:erstanding that Staff and the auditors would keep this

information confidential and not release it to the public. Id. 'I'he Companies further understood

in their meetings with Staff that the atxditors' reports incorporating the REC Proctrrement Data

would be filed under seal and that such unredacted reports would be kept under seal until the

Commission ruled otherwise. Id.

On August 15, 2012, the Exeter and Goldenberg reports were filed with the Cominission

under seal. On the same day, redacted versions of both reports were made available to the public

on the docket for PLJCO Case No. 11-5201-EL-RDR. [See Docket, Case No. 11-5201-EL-RDR

(Date: August 15, 2012).] 'I'he Companies subsequently filed their first motion for a protective

order with the Commission to safeguard the REC Procurement Data contained in the Exeter

Report by keeping the unredacted version of the Exeter Report under seal. The Companies also

entered into protective agreements with the intervenors in the proceeding below to further

prevent public dissemination of the REC Procurement Data. The Companies then proceeded to

file several additional motions for protective orders in order to protect the REC Procurement

Data contained in m.aterialsfiled with the Commission. 'These materials included the direct

testimony and exhibits of the Companies' witnesses, deposition testirnon`r and exhibits, draft

versions of the audit reports; and all of the Companies' post-hearing briefing, including their

3



Application for Rehearing. Confidential versions of the aforementioned materials werc filed

under seal with the Commission as well as minimally-redacted public versions.

On four separate occasions in the proceeding below, the Commission specifically

determined that the REC Procurement Data constituted a trade secret under Ohio law, First, in a

hearing on November 20, 2012, in which the Attorney Examiner granted the Cotnpanies' tirst

motion for a protective order, the Attorney Examiner held:

The Examiner finds that the redacted portions of the auditor repoi-ts have
independent economic value and the information was subject to
reasonable efforts to maintain its secrecy. Furtber, the Examiner finds
the redacted portions of the auditor's reports meet the six factor test
specified by the Supreme Court. Therefore, the Examiner finds that the
redacted portions of the auditor's reports are trade secrets and a
protective order should be granted pursuant to Rule 4901-1-24 of the
Ohio Administrative Code.

Case No. 11-5201-EL-RDR, Ilearing 'I,r, at 17-1$ (Dec. 4, 2012). A true and accurate copy of

this transcript is attached hereto as Exhibit A. On that occasion, the Attorney Examiner further

recognized the need "to emphasize that all parties will maintain the confidentiality of the

confidential information contained in the unredacted audit reports [and] ... none of that

information may be publicly disclosed, and any information containing documents [that contain

this information] filed with this Commission will be filed under seal." Id. at 18-19.

Second, in its Entry dated February 14, 2013, the Attorney Examiner again held:

The attomey examiner has reviewed the information included in
FirstEnergy's motion for protective order, as well as the assertions set
forth in the supportive memorandum. Applying the requirements that
the information have independent economic value and be the subject of
reasonable efforts to maintain its secrecy pursuant to Section 1333.61(D),
Revised Code, as well as the six-factor test set forth by the Ohio
Supreme Court, the attorney examiner finds that, consistent with the
ruling at the November 20, 2012, prehearing conference, confidential
supplier pricing and supplier-identifying information that appears in the
draft document contains trade secret information. Its release is, therefore,
prohibited under state law. The attorney examiner also finds that

4



nondisclosure of this inforlnation is not inconsistent with the purposes of
Title 49 of the Revised Code.

Case No. 11-5201-EL-RDR, Entry at 5 (Feb. 14, 2013). A true and accurate copy of this entry is

attached hereto as Exhibit B,

Third, in its Opinion and Order (the "Order"), dated August 7, 2013, the Commission

rejected arguments that the REC Procurement Data did not deserve continuing protection. Case

No. 11-5201-EL-RDR, Opinion and Order at 8-9 (Aug. 7, 2013). The Commission held:

Applying the requirements that the information have independent
economic value and be the subject of reasonable efforts to maintain
its secrecy pursuant to Section 1333.61(D), Revised Code, as well
as the six-factor test set forth by the Ohio Supreme Court in Plain
Dealer...., the Commission finds that the REC procurement data
contains trade secret information, Its release, therefore, is
prohibited under state law. The Commission also finds that
nondisclosure of this information is not inconsistent with the
purposes of Title 49 of the Revised Code.

Id. at 11-12. The only modif ication to the previous orders was that the Commission permitted

the "generic disclosure" of one of the Companies' REC suppliers as a successful bidder. Id. at

11-12. Again, however, the Order emphasized that any remaining REC Procurement Data "shall

continue to be confidential and subject to the protective orders." Id.

Fourth, in its Second Entry on Rehearing ("Second Entry"), dated December 18, 2013,

the Commission affirmed its findings from the Order regarding the trade secret status of the REC

Procurement Data. Case No. l 1-5201-EL-RDR, Second Entry on Rehearing at 4 (Dec. 18,

2013). In its Second Entry, the Commission emphasized the continued need to protect the REC

Procurement Data because the public dissemination thereof could undermine the integrity of the

REC rnarket in Ohio. Specifically, the Commission found, "if this trade secret information was

public, it could discourage REC suppliers' confidence in the market and impede the function of

the REC market." Id. at 5.



During the hearing in the proceeding below, the Commission also bifurcated the

proceedings into public and confidential portions, with public and confidential transcripts, in

order to protect the REC Procurement Data. Subsequent to the hearing, confidential portions of

these transcripts, along with any associated exhibits, were placed and kept under seal at the

offices of the Commission. At all times, the REC Procurement Data contained in materials filed

with the Commission in the proceeding below has been kept under scal. On January 23, 2014,

the Commission transferred the record from the proceeding below to the office of this Court's

clerk. Consistent with the above, those portions of the record sealed in the proceeding below

remain so in the instant matter.

III. ARGUMENT

Pursuant RuIe 3.02(B) of the Supreme Court Rules of Practice, a document filed with this

Court shall be public unless sealed by this Court or subject to a pending motion to seal. See

S.Ct.R.Prac.R. 3 ).02(B). This Court routinely grants motions to file under seal portions of

appendices and supplements to merit briefs that reference portions of a sealed, record. For

example, in Ohio L"oyasuhaers' Counsel V. Pub. Util, Cornm., 121 Ohio St. 3d 362, 904 N-.E.2d

853 (2009), this Court granted a motion to seal briefs and supplements referencing "material that

the Commission determined to be trade secrets in the decision under appeal." Id at 370. See

also Cincinnati Bell Tel, Co. v. Pzab. Util. Comm., 91 Ohio St. 3d 1410, 740 N.E.2d 1110 (2001)

(granting motion to seal portion of supplement); In re Application ofArn: Transmission Sys., Inc.,

122 Ohio St. 3d 1451, 908 N.E.2d 943 (2009) (granting motion to seal portion of supplement in

an appeal from theOioPowerSiting Board).

So too here, certain portions of the Appendix and Supplement of the Companies' Merit

Brief contain information that the Commission repeatedly found in the proceeding below to

6



constitute trade secrets under Ohio law. For example, the unredacted version of the Companies'

Application for Rehearing that forms part of the Appendix refers to and relies upon the REC

Procurement Data. Similarly, the Supplement contains, among other confidential items,

numerous pages of the confidential version of the transcript that were filed under seal both at the

Commission and the office of this Court's clerk. The only way to safeguard the RF.C

Procurement Data contained in the Appendix and the Supplement is for these materials to be

filed under seal. Moreover, and pursuant to the strictures of Rule 3.02(B) of the Supreme Court

Rules of Practice, the Companies have redacted only where absolutely necessary and filed

minimally-redacted public versions of the instant materials with this Court's clerk.

IV. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, this Court should grant the Motion to Seal of the Companies.
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PROCEEDINGS

before Mr. Gregory Price, Hearing Examiner, at the

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 180 East Broad.

Street, Room 11-C, Columbus, Ohio, called at 10:00

a.m. on Tuesday, November 20, 2012.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC.
222 East Town Street, 2nd Floor

Columbus, Ohio 43215
(614) 224-9481 - (804) 223-9481

Fax - (614) 224-5724

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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APPEARANCES:

FirstEnergy

By Mr. James W. Burk

And Ms. Carrie M. Dunn

76 South Main Street

Akron, Ohio 44308

Jones Day

By Mr. David A. Kutik
901 Lakeside Avenue
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

On behalf of the Company.

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease

By Mr. M. Howard Petricoff

And Mr. Stephen M. Howard
52 East Gay Street
Columbus, Ohio 43216

On behalf of the IGS Energy.

Bruce J. Weston, Ohio Consumers' Counsel
By Ms. Melissa R. Yost
Assistant Consumers` Counsel
10 West Broad Street, 18th Floor
Columbus, Ohio 43215

On behalf of OCC.

Williams, Allwein & Moser, LLC
By Mr. Christopher J. Allwein
1373 Grandview Avenue, Suite 212
Columbus, Ohio 43212

On behalf of the Sierra Club.

Ohio Environmental Council

By Mr. Trent A. Dougherty

and Ms. Catherine N. Lucas

1207 Grandview Avenue, Suite 201
Columbus, Ohio 43215

On behalf of the OEC.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Co:lurnbus, Ohio ( 614) 224-9481
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APPEARANCES (Continued):

Bricker & Eckler
By Mr. Matthew W. Warnock

100 South Thard Street

Columbus, Ohio 43215

On behalf of OMA.

Bricker & Eckler
By Mr. J. Thomas Siwo
and Terrence O'Donnell
100 South Third Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215

On behalf of the Mid-Atlantic Renewable
Energy Coalition.

Mike DeWine, Ohio Attorney General
By Thomas G. Lindgren
Assistant Attorney General
180 East Broad Street, 6th Floor
Columbus, Ohio, 43215

On behalf of the Staff.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481



Proceedings

41

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Tuesday Mornirig Session,

November 20, 2012.

EXAMINER PRICE: Let's go on the record

please.

Good morning. The Public Utilities

Comrn.i,ssion has set for this time and this place a

prehearing conference in Case No. 11-5201-EL-RDR,

being In the Matter of the Review of the Alternative

Energy Rider Contained in the Tariffs of Ohio Edison,

Company, The Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company,

and The Toledo Edison Company.

My name is Gregory Price, I'm the

Attorney Examiner assigned to preside over today's

prehearing conference.

Let's begin by taking appearances

starting with the cpmpany.

MR. BURR: On behalf of the companies,

James W. Burk and Carrie M. Dunn, 76 South Main

Street, Akron, Ohio, and also on behalf of the

companies David Kutik, the Jones-Day law firm, North

Point, 901 Lakeside Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio.

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Lindgren?

MR. LINDGREN: Ori behalf of the staff of

the Commission, Ohio Attorney General Mike DeWine, by

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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Thomas G. Lindgren, Assistant Attorney General, 180

East Broad Street, 6th Floor, Columbus, Ohio, 43215.

EXAMINER PR?CE: Thank you.

MR. HOWARD: Your Honor, on behalf of the

intersta:te Gas Supply, Inc., d/b/a IGS Energy, please

have the record reflect the appearance of the law

firm of Vorys Sater, Seymour and Pease, 52 East Gay

Street, Columbus, Ohio, 43216, by M. Howard Petricoff

and Stephen M. Howard. Thank you.

EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you.

MS. YOST: Good morning. On behalf of

the Ohio Consumers' Counsel, Bruce J. Weston,

Consumers' Counsel, Melissa Yost, 10 West Broad

Street, Suite 1800, Columbus, Ohio, 43215.

EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you.

MR. DOUGHERTY: Your 14orior, on behalf of

the Ohio Environmental Council, Trent Dougherty and

Catherine N. Lucas, 1207 Grandview Avenue, Suite 201,

Columbus, Ohio, 43212.

EXAMINER PRICE: From the OMA?

MR. WARNOCK: On behalf of the OMA Energy

Group, Matt Warnock from the law firm of Bricker &

Eckler, 100 South Third Street, Columbus, Ohio.

MR. ALLWEIN: Good morning, your Honor.

On behalf of the Sierra Club, Christopher J. Allwein,

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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1373 Grandview Avenue, Suite 212, Columbus, Ohio,

43212.

EX-AdMINER PRICE: Thank you.

The purpose of today's prehearing

conference is to --

MR. SIWO: Your Honor, on behalf of the

Mid-Atlantic Renewable Energy Coalition, J. Thomas

Siwo, Terrence O'Donnell, Bricker & Eckler, 100 South

Third Street, Columbus, Ohio, 43215.

EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you.

Once again, the purpose of today's

prehearing conference is to take up the two motions

we have regarding discovery issues. We have pending

before us a motion for protective order filed by

FirstEnergy and a motion to dismiss filed by the

Consumers' Counsel.

We've reviewed the pleading -- motion for

protection and to compel discovery filed by

Consumers' Counsel. I've reviewed the pleadings

filed by the parties but I thought we'd start by

allowing the parties to briefly summarize and

supplement any arguments that they made in the

pl.eadings, and we'll start with. the company.

MR. KUTIK: Thank you, your Honor. Good:.

morning.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio {614) 224-9481
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Your Honor, the only thing that really is

at issue here is whether the parties and the Public

Utilities Com.mission get to see the names of the

suppliers that are in the Exeter Report. Although

the Exeter Report also contains and the public

versi.on has redacted pricing information, we have

offered to the parties, particularly OCC, the

opportunity to see that information under a

protective agreement.

With respect to the identity of the

suppliers, your Honor, we believe that that is trade

secret, and in very similar circumstances this

Commission has determined and has held that type of

information to be protected from the public.

And in our briefs, as you know, your

Honor, we cited the;.competitive bidding process cases

in the companies' and other's ESPs where the

company -- where information as to specific bidders

being tied to specific bids was kept confidential and

remained from public view.

We believe that that information again is

information that the Commission in this instance

should keep from the public as well.

As indicated by Navigant which ran the

competitive processes here, that informatiori would be

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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deleterious if it was disclosed to the future

vi.abi.lity of RFPs and competitive bidding processes.

Parties that have participated in the

process, parties that are anticipating participating

in the process need to understand the rules. The

rules were understood to be that information with

respect to their specific bids and their identities

with respect to specific bids would remain

confidential even if that information was given to

the Commission.

We were obligated under our contracts to,

if the information was provided to the Commission or

to their auditors, keep that information confidential

and take steps to do so.

We had agreements with the staff and with

the audi'tors that that information that they were

given that were in the published report would remain

confidential and that was the reason why the staff

did file the document under seal and file the

redacted docurnent.

We believe that the process that was

filed by the staff was in large part appropriate and

we believe that the confidentiality of the

information should be maintained.

EXAMINER PRICE; Mr. Kutik, I have one

A_TZMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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EXAMINER PRICE: Can you expiain why you

believe that that information should not be disclosed

to the parties under protective agreement which would

shield it frorn the public?

MR. KUTIK: Well, your Honor, again, that

information with respect to suppliers, one, we

believe that there hasn't been any demonstration of

relevance. The OCC, for example, has had four

occasions, four briefs to demonstrate relevance and

they haven't done so.

But with respect to the confidentiality,

your Horiar, we believe that given that there is no

need for that information, given that the specifics

of the supplier information is one of the I think key

pieces of proprietary information, we believe that

there has to be an extra special showing for them to

see that information beyond what they would get with

redaction.

EXAMINER PRICE: But, Mr. Kutik, they

don't need to show relevance, they need to show that

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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this is something that's reasonably calculated to

lead to discoverable materials.

MR. KUTIK: That's true, your Honor, and

they haven't done that either.

EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you.

Consumers' Counsel?

MS. YOST: Thank you, yaur Honor.

First, I' d like to point to the

Commission's entry regarding this process here-

Specifzcally, the Commission has held in two separate

entries, the first being January 18, 2012, paragraph

7, the second being February 23, 2012, paragraph 9,

that any conclusions, results, or recommendations

formulated by the auditor may be examined by any

participant to this proceeding.

OCC is requesting the information that

the Co:nmissi.on mandated would be available to any

party in this proceeding for its review.

What I'd like to really focus on is the

fact of the matter is the arguments that FirstEnergy

raised are meritless. The information, the Exeter

audit report was filed on August 15, 2012. At that

time there was no motion for protection filed with

that report.

That's contrary to the Commission's

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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rules, specifically 4901-1-02(E), that holds that any

document will be treated as public unless a motion

for protection is filed at the same time.

Second, or the next issue is the

information that FirstEnergy seeks to protect is not

their information. In their initial motion for

protection they acknowledged that, that they say this

information is third-party information.

In regard to any alleged contracts all --

EXAMINER PRICE: But that's not

unprecedented, Ms. Yost. We have proceedings all the

time where utilities holding third party confidential

information will file for protective orders in order

to protect the information. That's not unprecedented

at all, is it?

MS. YOST: No, especially where there's a

duty to protect it, but here is where we lack the

duty.

With their motion for protection they

filed two exhibits, Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2. They cite

to three different articles of those exhibits to

bestow upon them this duty to protect the

information.

One of the articles they cite to in

regards to one of the articles clearly is

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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inapplicable. It's about the buyer's obligation --

excuse me, the seller's obligation.

In regards to Exhibit 2, that agreement

specifically puts upon -- the duty to protect the

information upon the suppliers. It speaks to audits

by the Commission and has language that imposes any

obligation to protect that information upon the

suppliers.

Here we are months into this proceeding

and no supplier has motioned the Commission to

protect their information.

In regards to the other exhibit, any duty

to protect that information expired one year after

the term of the contract. In regards to the vintages

of 2009-2010, that term of the contract has already

expired so any obligations that there was has

expired., and the third term of that contract expires

at the end of this year, December 31, 2012.

But that obligation to keep information

confidential was only imposed upon FirstEnergy if

there was an actual request. And there's been no

evidence that any of the suppliers requested that

information being protected.

EXAMINER PRICE: But a supplier under

your theory would have to disclose their identity

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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that they were a bidder in order to protect the

information, wouldn't they?

They're going to have to come before the

Commission and say I'm a supplier and I woul.d like my

information to be protected.

MS. YOST: Sure. To the extent that they

were a winning bidder, and I believe everybody's a

winning bidder, yes. And I don't think that's

sorriething that they would shy away from. I think

they want to be in the business of selling recs and

would want people out there to know that's what they

do. But that's a fair assessment.

That being said, even for the company to

put forth any statements of fact or affidavits that

XYZ bidder asked them to do that, and we've seen none

of that. The information that they're seeking to

protect beyond riot being theirs is historical; most

of it is over three years old.

I look to the most recent Lonm-aission

precedent hot off the press November 16 regarding the

most recent auction in the Duke case, and I cite to

paragraph 10 of the November 16, 2012, Commission

entry which in essence after 21 days will be

releasing the names of the bidders who won tranches

in the competitive bid auction.

ARMSTRONG & OKEX, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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The number of tranches won by each

bidder, the first round of ratio tranche is 5upp.]_ied

compared to the trariches needed, and other

information.

So the names of the suppliers are

information that the Commission generally always

releases. The cases that they cite to they

misinterpret and do not support their position and in

fact, would support OCC.

So my final thoughts are the information,

if it were trade secret information, we do not

dispute trade secret information should be protected.

The problem with FirstEnergy's argument is it's not

trade secret information and therefore OCC woUld like

to see the entire report.

Why this identity of the suppliers is

relevant: The identity of the suppliers is rel.evant

because we need to know if it's affiliate

transactions or non-affiliate transactions.

EXAMZNER PRICE: You know there's some

affiliate transactions.

MS. YOST: Yes, but I think it would help

a person in this posit.ion if -- I do know there's

some affiliate transactions which --

EXAMINER PRiCE: So what more do you need

AR,."4STRQNG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio t614} 224-9481
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if you know some of the transactions are affiliate

transactions? That's public. What more do you need

to know to put on your case?

There's no evidence in the audit report

that there were improper controls on the affiliate

transactions.

MS. YOST: WeI]., they say it didn't

violate the statute, but the corporate separation law

always speaks to the Commission°s obligation or

authority to amend corporate separation.

So to the extent that if there were other

transactions where such as the auditor found that

there were excessively high prices paid and it was a

non-affiliate, that would kind of mitigate our

concerns that it's just about corporate separation.

So to the extent that ABC Wind Farm

receives $675 for recs, that would be helpful to us

to say hey, you know what, this may be an issue

that's just not about corporate separation and we

could rule that out, but if it's onyy the affiliate

companies, which it.seems like all signs are showing

received what amounts that are over $675 for recs

that were $45 that the auditor found to be a

seriously flawed business decision, that's why it's

important.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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So with that, thank you.

EXAMINER PR^.CE : Thank you.

Any other party care to speak to this?

Mr. Kutik, response?

MR. kt3TIK: Yes, your Honor, briefly.

With respect to the relevance, I'm not

sure I understan.d what the relevance case is.

There's nothing that prevents them if they think that

the proper protections were not accorded here in

terms of keeping corporate separation. There's

nothing that can prevent them from doing whatever

discovery they want to do with respect to the

process.

There's nothing in the report that they

can talk about or cite to which helps them in terms

of their case on that particular issue.

So they haven't made their case for

relevance, as you pointed out, to show that this is

likely to lead to discovery of admissible evidence.

The bottom line here is that it is in all

parties' interests, particularly customers'

interests, for the process to be a competitive one,

that the process be one that suppliers want to

participate in, and to protect the process to get a

competitive process that will lead to the best prices

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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and hopefully the lowest price that can be obtained

in the market.

If we change rules that allow information

that suppliers reasonably believe would be protected

from public disclosure or disclosure at all to be

disclosed after the fact, there will be some concerns

that suppliers have and that will question -- pose

questions about the integrity of the process and w.i1.l

retard the development of a rec market and

particularly the effectiveness of the RFP process by

the companies.

EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you.

At this time the motion for protective

order and the motion to dismiss will be granted in

part and denied in part. The Commission has

generally ruled that bidder-specific information

including prices, quantities, and the identity of

bidders to be trade secret information.

The Examiner finds that the redacted

portions of the auditor reports have independent

economic value and the information was subject to

reasonable efforts to maintain its secrecy.

Further, the Examiner finds the redacted

portions of the auditor's reports meet the six-factor

test specified by the Supreme Court.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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Therefore, the Examiner finds that the

redacted portions of.the auditor's reports are trade

secrets and a protective order shou'Ld be granted

pursuant to Rule 4901-1-24 of the Ohio Ad:ninistrative

Code.

However, FirstEnergy will disclose

unredacted copies of the auditor`s reports to Ohio

Consumers' Counsel. No bid-specific informats_on will

be withheld, no bidder identities will be withheld.

This disclosure will be contingent upon

the agreement of a mutual acceptable protective

agreement between FirstEnergy and Consumers' Counsel.

The Examiner expects the protective order

will be. consistept with the agreements entered into

between the parties in prior Commission proceedings.

To the extent that no mutual acceptable protective

agreement can be reached, the parties should raise

this issue with the Examiners.

All parties -- T'd like to emphasize that

all parties will maintain the confidentiality of the

confidential information contained in the unredacted

audit reports.

No information may be -- none of that

information may be publicly disclosed, and any

information contai ning doctzments filed with this

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224--9481
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Com.nil.ssion will be filed under seal, and at the

hearing we'11 take appropriate measures to protect

the confidentiality of that information.

Further, the Examiner would like to

emphasize that rio ruling has been made with respect

to any evidence contained in the auditor's reports at

this time.

MS. YOST: Your Honor, you said "motion

to dismiss."

EXAMINER PRICE: I said it again. You

know, I wrote it down that way wrong too.

The proper ruling is the motion for

protective order and the motion to compel will be

granted in part and denied in part.

Thank you, Ms. Yost.

MS. YOST: I have another separate matter

in regard to the report, if this is the time to bring

it up.

EXAMINER PRICE: Yes.

MS. YOST; Again, speaking to the

redacted report that was filed on August 15, your

Honor, do you have a copy of it in front of you?

EXAMINER PRICE: I do.

MS. YOST: I only have the redacted copy

but if I could paint the Bench`s attention to what is

AFtMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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page Roman Numeral iv, specifically the sentence that

is numbered 8 at the top that reads `°The FirstEnergy

Ohio Utility should have been aware that the prices

bid by FirstEnergy Solutions reflected significant

economic grants and were excessive by any reasonable

If you could turn now to page 33 of the

same document, specifically paragraph 5.

EXAMINER PRICE: Yes.

MS. YOST: Again I have only the redacted

copy, that's all I've been provided, but to the

extent that the redacted portion of sentence 5 says

"FirstEnergy Solutions, "whi.ch it appears to be the

identical sentence, OCC would move to have that

sentence 5 unredacted because it.'s already been

publicly released on page iv, paragraph 8. If it is

the identical senternce. T don't know, it appears to

be.

EXAMINER PRICE: I suspect it is but I

don't have the unredacted copy with me either.

Mr. Kutik?

MR. KUTIK: Well, your Honor, frankly,

the unredacted portion of No. 8 should have been

redacted. And without agreeing or admitting anything

with respect to No. 5 on page 33, even assuming that

AR.t^i'STRC3NG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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it was the same, we would argue that since 8 was

improper, then 5 should rernain redacted.

EXAMINER PRICE: We' re going to deal with

it this way: You're going to give them. at some point

in the near future the unredacted copy and they can

raise this issue on hearing to the extent they need

to.

If it's identical, I don't know what it

would add to the record, and if it's not identical,

then it will be a different issue that we'll have to

deal with at that time.

MS. YOST: Your Honor, I only raise that

to th.e extent we are able to negotiate a protective

agreement that is given to us and we don't want it to

be confusing whether we are releasirlg information

that is already publicly there.

EXlAMZNER PRICE: If you ctuote page I-4,

you will be just fine.

MS. YOST: Thank you, your Honor.

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Allwein.

MR. ALLWEZN: You mentioned this

unredacted report would be released to 0CG upon the

execution of a protective agreement. Is that

available to all parties?

EXAMINER PRICE: Available to all parties

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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who are willing to sign a protective agreement that

is substantially consistent with protective

agreements filed in other Commission proceedings.

MR. ALLWEIN: Thank you, your Honor.

EXAMINER PRICE: Any other issues for the

MR. KUTIK: Yes, your Honor.

EXAMINER PRICE: Yes, sir.

MR. KUTIK: We have two issues, both

relate to staff. The scheduling order, as far as I

understand it, your Ronor, does not specify a date

for staff to file its testimony if any. And we would

ask that the Bench set such a date.

EXAMINER PRICE: Mr. Lindgren?

MR. LINDGREN: The Commission customarily

allows the staff until a day prior to the start of

the hearing to file its testimony.

EX:A.MSNER PRICE: I don't know about the

Commission but that certainly is my custom, and I

expect the staff will be reasonable and wil1. file it

not the day before the hearing date but at some point

prior to the hearing.

MR. LINDGREN: Yes, it will be filed

prior to the hear.i.ng.

MR. KUTiK: Well, your Honor, that raises

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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another point, and that relates to our ability to

adequately prepare our case. We expect that most of

the case will be a dialogue in essence between our

witness' position and the witnesses of the staff

consultants, technically the auditor.

We would like obviously an opportunity

before the hearing begins to be able to understand

what staff's consultant's testimony is. So we would

ask that we would be given at least a week before the

hearing to get their testimony.

EXAMINER PRZCE. I don't know that

there' s-- I guess let me step back.

I suspect that the auditor's testimony is

not going to be anything other than what's currently

in the audit reports. That the auditor's testimony

is simply going to be these are our reports and

everything in there is truthful and accurate.

Is there any reason to believe that's not

correct, Mr. Lindgren?

MR. LINDGREN: It's possible they would

have a correction to make, but otherwise their

testimony is --

EXAMINER PRICE: Not going to be any

supplemental or additional issues beyond what's in

the audit report.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbis, Ohio (614) 224-94$1
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MR. LINDGREN: That's my understanding.

MR. KUTIK: So, for example, your Honor,

if I could inquire, there wouldn't be any specific,

for lack of a better term, rebuttal or response to

th'ilngs that are explained or pointed out by the

companies.

I would expect that the staff would want

that opportunity and would do so in terms of their

consultant.

EXAMINER PRICE: If the staff is going to

put on rebuttal evidence, they would have to ask for

permission to put on rebuttal evidence at the

conclusion of this case in chief.

MR. KUTIK: "Rebuttal" is probably the

wrong word. The better word is "response." Because,

frankly, I think it's the company that has probably

the opportunity for rebuttal since we file our

testimony first.

EXAMINER PRICE: I said °`ask."

MR. KUTIK: Correct, I would have the

opportunity I think I said.

So that if they were going to put things

in their testimony as staff consultants that would be

responding to specific points that the company's

witnesses would make, points that would be beyond

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Cil-ii n(614) 224-9481
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things that were pointed out in the report, that's a

scenario where we would like to have more than a day

to respond before the hearing.

EXAMINER PRICE: And again, I guess what

i'm trying to say is to the extent that staff is

going to rebut or respond or address any issues in

testimony that your witnesses raise, I would expect

they'll do it in the rebuttal phase and will have to

ask the Bench's indulgence to file such testimony.

At that point we'll work out an appropriate schedule.

MR. KUTIK: May I have one minute, your

Honor?

EXAMINER PRICE: Yes.

MR. KUTIK: The other thing, your Honor,

is --

EX_AMINER PRICE: Let me, before we move

off topic.

Mr. Lindgren, is the staff going to put

on anybody other than the auditors?

MR. LINDGREN: May I have a moment to

consult my clients?

EXAMINER PRICE: You may.

MR. LINDGREN: Your Honor, at this time

the staff does not plan to put on any additional

witnesses.

A-RMSTRCNG & OKEY, INC ., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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EXAMINER PRICE: Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Kutik

MR. KUTIK: Your Honor, .in regard to the

witnesses that are going to be the consultants, we

would like to have the opportunity to take the

depositions of those witnesses.

And the reason I bring it up now, not

having filed a motion, not having notice, I didn't

want to be down the line where we are at the eve of

hearing and leave this unresolved. That's why I'm

bringing it up now.

If it would be more appropriate to do it

1.ater, I'm certainly glad to do that.

EX-AMINER PRICE: Mr. Lindgren, do you

care to respond?

MR. LINDGREN: If he's suggesting that he

wants to take the deposition of the auditors, tho

Commission has ruled in previous cases that the

auditors who were retained pursuant to the Commission

order are treated the same as the staff and

depositions are not permitted of them.

EX-AMINER PRICE: Mr. Kutik?

MR. KUTIK: Your Honor, the rule that the

Commission has excepts out for discovery depositions

members of the staff. And it particularly uses the

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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word "members" of the staff. It does not use the

word "consultant," it does not use the word

"contractor," uses the word "member." So that under

the language of the Rule, the clear language of the

Rule, we believe we should have an opportunity to

take a deposition of a witness even if they had a

contract with the staff.

EXAMINER PRICE: Understood. Let's go

off the record.

(Off the record.)

EXAMINER PRICE: Let's go back on the

record.

At this time the Bench will defer ruling

on FirstEnergy's request for a deposition of the

auditors. We do have usual practices and procedures

around here and I would like the parties to see if

they can informally;resolve this without necessity of

a ruling from the Bench.

Anything else?

Seeing none, we are adjourned for the

day. Thank you, all.

(Hearing adjourned at 10:33 a.m.)

Z1.RMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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CERTIFICATE

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a

true and correct transcript of the proceedings taken

by me in this matter on Tuesday, November 20, 2012,

and carefully compared with my original stenographic

6 notes.
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Julieanna Hennebert, Registered

Professional Reporter and RMR and

Notary Public in and for the

State of Ohio.

My commission expires February 19, 2013.

(JUL,-1928 )
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BEFORE

THE PCJBLIC U'.TTLITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

Ii-c the Matter of the Review of the
Alternative Energy Rider Contained
in the Tariffs of OMo Edison Coni-pany,
The Cleveland Electric Illun^dnating
Company, and The Toledo Edison
Compax-►y.

ENTRY

The attorney examiuter finds:

Case No.11.-5201-EL-RDI.Z

(1) On 5epteznber 20, 2011, the Comznission issued an entry on
rehearing in In the Matter af ttie Annual Alterriat.ive Energgy
Status Report a f Olazo Ed.iscna Company, T7w Clevelarsd Electric
Ittunzii7ating CaYrxpany, and Pre Toledo Edison Cornpcrny, Case
No. 11-2479-EL-ACP. In that entry on rehearing, the
Commission stated that it had opened the above-captioned
case for the purpose of reviewing the Rider AER of Ohio
Edison Con.xpany, The Clevelaitd Electric Illuarninating
Company, and The Toledo Edison Company (collectively,
FirstEnergy or the, Compardes). Additionally, the
Commission stated that its review would include the
Conipanies' procurement of reneNvable energy credits for
purposes of compliance vvitli Section 4928.64, Revised.
Code.

(2) By entry issued on February 23, 2012, the Comi.ission
selected Exeter Associates, Inc. (Exeter), to coizduct the
management; peiforr7.tance portion of the audit and
Goldenberg Schneider, LPA (Goldenkrerg), to conduct the
financial portion of the audit in accordance with tl-ie ternis
set forth in the RFP.

(3) Chx August 15, 2012, Exeter and Goldeilberg filed final
audit reports on the ma-nagement/perforzrian.ce portiori
azid funmcial portion of Rider AER, respectively.

(4) On September 26, 2012, Ohio Consumers' Couzzsel
(OCC) filed a n.-totion for a prehearixag conference in
order to obtain a non-redacted copy of the
znaiZagement/perforriiance portioxi of the audit report,
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which the attorney exam.iner denied by entry issued on.
October 11, 2012, finding that OCC's xaxotion was
premature.

(5) Ch-i October 3, 2012, EirstExaergy filed a motion for
protective order to protect from ptiblic eli.sclostire
confidential sta.pplier pxicing and supplier-idenb#ying
inforxnaEion that appears in the unredacted version of the
final report of the n-tanagemeztt/perforn2ance audit of
Rider AER.

(6) Thereafter, on October 23, 2012, CYCC filed a motion to
compel FirstEnergy to provide a completely tuiredacted
copy of the final report of the manaagerreent/performance
portion of the audit.

(7} On October 29, 2012, Daltiel Bradley, Director of Navigant
Coixsulting, filed correspondence witlz the Conimission
recornu.tendittg against the release of the unredacted fuial
report of the management/perfomi.ance porti.on of the
audit.

(8) FirstEnergy filed a memorandum cotitra OCC's motion to
compel oxa November 7, 2012.

(9) On Noveniber 20, 2012, a prehearing was held in thi:s
proceeding ptzt•suant to the procedural schedtule. At the
prehearing coiiference, the presiding attorney exaniirter
addressed. FirstEnergy's pending rnotion for protective
order and OCC's pending motion to compel, granti.ng
them, in part, and deity.uxg thexn, in part. More specifically,
the presidiuig attorney examiner found that the redacted
porfior►s of the auditor report have independent economic
value, are subject to reasonable efforts to maintain its
secrecy, and meet the six-factor test specified by the
Suprenle Court of Qhio. .Nevea-theless, the presidiizg
attornev exarniner found that FirstEnergy sholtid disclose
unredacted copies of the audit report to OCC, coi-itingent
upon a mutually acceptable protective agreement betyveen
FrrstEnergy and C?CC.

(10) Thereafter, on Decegnber 31, 2012, FirstEizergy filed a
second motion for protective order, requesting a protective
order regarding a puhlic records request ariade by tJCC on
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December 21, 2012. According to FirstEnergy, OCC's
public records request at issue requested documents
reflecting the Coinpayties' comments on a confidential draft
of the final report of the naYagement/performance audit
of Rider AER for October 2009 through Deceniber 31, 2011
(draft documents). FirstEnergy argues that the
Commission should grant a protective order as to the
confidential draft docurnents because they contain
iritornaation on renewable energy credit supplier pricing
and identities, which was already held to be confidential
trade secret nitormation subject to a protective ordex
preventin:g public disclosure and Iimitiiig disclosure to
OCC subject to a protective agrem-tent at the Novenlbeer 20,
2012, prehearing. FirstEnergy asserts that, as a result, the
confidexitial draft docun-tents are not subject to disclosure
urlder a public records reqvest, Secondly, FirstFsterg_y
contends that the confidential draft docciuuents are not
subject to disclosure mtder a public records request
pursuant to Section 4901.16, Revised Code, because they
were provided to Staff as confidential matezials pursuant to
Staffs audit of Rider AER. FirstEnergy argues that OCCs
public records request is an inappropriate attempt to
sidestep the Conuussion's discovery process.

(11) On january 15, 2013, OCC filed a meinoranduan contra
FirstEnergy's inotioit for protective order. In its
rneznoranduut contra, OCC argues that the Conlni.ission
should deny FirstEnergjr's motion for protective order
because none of the iztfor.inatioaz contained ni the draft
documents qualifies as trade secret infoimiation -iznder Oh.y.o
law; because FirstEnergy failed to meet the burden
associated with specificaIly identifying the need for
protection from disclosure; becau,se the draft documents
xnttst be produced in a redacted form; because Section
4901.16, Revised Code, does not prevent public disclosure
of the draft docunients pursuaalt to a public records
request, and, becau5e public polzc_y supports denial of
FirstEnergy's motion for protective order. In its
nxemorandum contra, OCC also states that a draft copy of
the audit report was filed wid-t the Conurussion..

-3-

(12) On january 22, 2013, FirstEnergy filed a reply to OCC's
memorandum contra the Conipanies' motion for protective
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order. In its reply, FirstExlergy iizitially points out that
L7CC incorrectly contends in its memorandaun contra that
the coaifiderttia.l draft documents were iiled with the
Conunissi:on, FirstEnergy riotes that the draft documents
were not ii7:ed with the Cornmission, but were provided to
Staff a^s part of the audit process as contentplated by the
RFP wifh the cndezstandin.g that the docuntents would be
kept confidential. Consequently, FirstFaiergy reemphasizes
its ar,gu-ment that the confidential draft docunients .fa1l
within the ambit of Section 4901.15, Revised Code, and are
not subject to disclosure under a public records request.
Further, FirstEa3ergy argues that, even if the docuntents
were not protected by Seetioia 4901.16, Revised Code, the
plain language of Sectiori 149.43(zT), Revised Code, excludes
fronz the definition of puYslic records those that are
prohibited fronl disclosure by state or federal law.

(13) The attorney exantinet• ha.s conducted an iri canzera review
of the document subject to the public records request to
determine whether the d.ocument coaitains trade secrets or
confi.derttial irnform.ation and whether any such irtforanation
can be redacted fromtthe doc^iment.

(14) Section 4905.07, Revised Code, provides that all facts and
informatioit in the possession of the Conunission shall be
public, except as provided in Section 149.43, ReNrised Code,
and as consistent with the purposes of Title 49 of the
Revised Code. Section 149.43, Revised Code, specifies that
the term "publsc records" excludes h.t.tormation wluch,
under state or federal law, n-tay not be released. The Ohio
Suprenie Court has clarified that the "state or federal law"
exemption is uztended to cover trade secrets. State ex rel.
Besser v. Ohio State, 89 Ohio St.3d 396, 399, 732 N.E.2d 373
(2000)-

(15) Sinularly, Rule 4901-1-24, Ohio Administrative Code
(O.A.C.), allows an attorney exaiitiner to issue an order to
protect the confidentiality of inforznatiori contained in a
filed docuutent, "to the extent that state or federal law
prohibits release of the information, incluciing where the
iriforrnation is deemed ... to coiistitu.te a trade secret tutder
Ohio law, and where non-disclosure of the iniox7nation is

-4-
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not incoYisi.stesit with the purposes of Title 49 of tl-ie
Revised Code."

(16) (Jhio law defines a trade secret as °'inforrxration ... that
satisfies both of the following: (1) It derives independent
econoznic value, actual or poteritial, from not being
generally known to, and not being readily ascertainalile by
proper means by, other persons who can oUtaisi econoini.c
value froni its disclosure or use. (2) It is the subject of
efforts that are reasonable under the circun-Lstances to
niaixttai.n its secrecy.° Section 1333.61(D), Revised Code.

(17) The a.ttoratey examiner has reviewed the inforartatioit
included in FirstEnergy's motion for protective order, as
well as the assertions set foreh in the supportive
memorandunr. Applying the requirements that the
infoin-tatiozi have independent econonxi.c value and be the
subject of reasonable efforts to niauZtain its secrecy
pursuant to Section 1333.61(D), Revised Code, as well as
the six-factor test set forth by the C}hio Supreme Court,1 the
attora-cey exauainer finds that, consistent witli the nrLing at
the November 20, 2012, prehearing coiifereaace, coiaiideiltial
supplier pricing and supplier-identifying iulforsnation that
appears in the draft docuin.ent contauis trade secret
information_ Its release is, there:£ore, prohibited wzder state
law. The attornev exaxniner also finds that nondisclosu:re
of tliis iizformation is not inco.iisistent with the prtq-)oses of
Title 49 of the Reviseel. Cocle. Therefore, the attorney
examiner fincis that .f<irstEnergy's motion for protective
order is reasonable tivith regard to the confideiitial su.pplier
pricing and supp]ier-iderttifying iuformatiort that appears
in the draft document and: should be granted to the extent
discussed herein.

(18) Having determined that the supplier pricil:zg and supplier-
identifying information contahzs trade secret iz-i.fozniation,
the attorney exa7niner zloc+r niust evaluate whether the
docuu.nexit can be reasonably redacted to remove the
coaifidential information contained therein without
rendering the remaini3:ig document incomprehensible or of
little irieaning. The attoi7iey exanuner does find that it is

-5-

t See State ex red. the Flain Dcaier v. Ohio Zjcpt. of Ins., 80 Ohio St.3d 513, 524-525, 6$7 N.E.2d 661 (1997).
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possible to redact the docuxnezit and release a redacted
version of the documeizt. Therefore, the document will be
released in redacted forni in seven days tiu-dess otherwise
ordered. Finally, the parties to the proceeding nlay review
irz cairterca at the offices of the Coutxtli.ssion the redacted
docws7ent prior to its scheduled release.

(19) Rule 4901-1 -24(F), O.A.C., provides that, lulless otherwise
ordered, protective orders issued pursuant to Ru1e 4901-1-
24(D), O.A.C., autom.atically expire after 18 months.
However, in this case, the attorney examirt.er finds that
confi.deiitia1 treatn-tent shall be afforded for a period enda.atg
24 months from the date of this entfy or until February 13,
2015.

(20) Rule 4901-1-24(F), O.A.C., requires a party wishing to
extend a protective order to file an appropriate motion at
least 45 days in advance of the expiration date. If
FirstEnergy wishes to extend this cotif-identaal treatment, it
should fiIe an appropriate motion at least 45 days iLit
advance of the expiration date. If no such motion to extend
coirfiriential treatnient is filed, the Coixunission may release
this information without prior notice to FirstEnergy.

It is, therefore,

-6-

ORDERED, That Etze motion for protective ordeT filed by FirstEnergy is granted
as set forth in Finding (17). It is, further,

ORDERED, That, -unless otherwise ordered by the Cossu7.-issfon, the redacted
docun.Yent be released in seven days in accorda€lce with Finding (18). It is, fzrther,

ORDERED, That a copy of this entry be served upon all parties of record.

TI-IE PUBLIC UT.[LITIES CONIVIISSION OF OHIO

sLMandy Willey Chiles

By: Mandy Wi11ey Chiles
Attorney Exwitiner

GAP/sc
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E-mail: NMeDaniel(^elpc.org

Melissa R. Yost
Deputy Consumers' Counsel
Edmund Berger
Michael Schuler
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Office of the Ohio Consumers' Counsel
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